ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 1, 2007
9:05 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Lesil McQuire, Chair
Senator Gary Stevens, Vice Chair
Senator Hollis French

Senator Lyda Green

Senat or Con Bunde

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 19
"An Act relating to a public officer's taking official action
regarding a matter in which the public officer has a financial
interest; and defining ‘'official action'" under the Al aska
Executive Branch Ethics Act and related | aw. "

MOVED CSSB 19( STA) OUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BILL NO 20

"An Act relating to disclosure to the Alaska Public Ofices
Conmi ssion of information about certain incone received as
conpensation for personal services by legislators, ©public
menbers of the Select Conmttee on Legislative Ethics, and
| egislative directors subject to the Legislative Ethics Act; and
providing for an effective date."

MOVED CSSB 20( STA) OQUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BI LL NO. 45
“"An Act relating to murder in the first degree.”
MOVED CSSB 45( STA) OQUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BI LL NO. 36
"An Act relating to sentencing for the comm ssion of certain
of fenses influenced by alcohol and to the offense of consunption
of alcohol in violation of sentence.”

SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

SENATE STA COW TTEE -1- February 1, 2007



BILL: SB 19

SHORT TITLE: EXEC. BRANCH ETHI CS: | NTERESTS & ACTI ONS

SPONSOR(S): SENATOR(S) FRENCH, ELTON, MCGUI RE, W ELECHOWSKI,
THOMAS, HUGG NS

01/ 16/ 07 (S PREFI LE RELEASED 1/5/07

01/ 16/ 07 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

01/ 16/ 07 (S) JUD, STA, FIN

01/ 22/ 07 (S JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 211

01/ 22/ 07 (S) Heard & Held

01/ 22/ 07 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

01/ 24/ 07 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

01/ 24/ 07 (S) Moved CSSB 19(JUD) Qut of Conmittee

01/ 24/ 07 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

01/ 26/ 07 (S) JUD RPT CS 5DP NEW TI TLE

01/ 26/ 07 (S) DP: FRENCH, HUGG NS, W EL ECHOWSKI |
THERRI AULT, MCGUI RE

01/ 30/ 07 (S) STA AT 9: 00 AM BELTZ 211

01/ 30/ 07 (S -- Reschedul ed to 02/01/07 --

02/ 01/ 07 (S STA AT 9: 00 AM BELTZ 211

BILL: SB 20

SHORT TI TLE: LEGQ SLATI VE DI SCLOSURES

SPONSOR(S): SENATOR(S) FRENCH, ELTON, MCGU RE, W ELECHONEKI,
THOVAS, HUGGE NS

01/ 16/ 07 (S) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/5/ 07

01/ 16/ 07 (S READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

01/ 16/ 07 (S) JUD, STA, FIN

01/ 22/ 07 (S JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 211

01/ 22/ 07 (S) Heard & Held

01/ 22/ 07 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

01/ 24/ 07 (S) JUD AT 1: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

01/ 24/ 07 (S Moved CSSB 20(JUD) Qut of Conmmttee
01/ 24/ 07 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

01/ 26/ 07 (S JUD RPT CS 2DP 3AM  SAME TITLE

01/ 26/ 07 (S) DP: FRENCH, MCGUI RE

01/ 26/ 07 (S) AM HUGA NS, W ELECHOWEKI, THERRI AULT
01/ 30/ 07 (S STA AT 9: 00 AM BELTZ 211

01/ 30/ 07 (S -- Reschedul ed to 02/01/07 --

02/ 01/ 07 (S) STA AT 9: 00 AM BELTZ 211

BILL: SB 45

SHORT TI TLE: PEACE OFFI CER CONVI CTED OF MURDER
SPONSOR(S): SENATOR(S) OLSON

01/ 16/ 07 (S) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/12/07

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 2- February 1, 2007



01/ 16/ 07 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

01/ 16/ 07 (S) STA, JUD

01/ 25/ 07 (S STA AT 9: 00 AM BELTZ 211

01/ 25/ 07 (S) Heard & Held

01/ 25/ 07 (S) M NUTE( STA)

01/ 30/ 07 (S STA AT 9: 00 AM BELTZ 211

01/ 30/ 07 (S -- Reschedul ed to 02/01/07 --
02/ 01/ 07 (S STA AT 9: 00 AM BELTZ 211

W TNESS REG STER

DAVE JONES, Senior Assistant Attorney Ceneral

Cvil Division

Opi ni ons, Appeals, and Ethics

Departnent of Law

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions regarding SB 19 and 20.

DAN WAYNE, Attorney

Legal Services Division

Legi slative Affairs Agency

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions regarding SB 19 and 20.

JOHN FARLEI GH, representing hinself
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Spoke in favor of strong ethics |egislation.

STUART THOMPSON
Ket chi kan and Wasilla, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Spoke in favor of strong ethics |egislation.

WALT MONEGAN, Commi ssi oner

Departnent of Public Safety

Juneau, AK 99811-1200

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Spoke in support of amendnents to SB 45.

ANNE CARPENETI, Assistant Attorney General

Legal Services Section

Crimnal Division

Depart nent of Law

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions regardi ng SB 45.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 3- February 1, 2007



CHAIR LESIL MCQU RE called the Senate State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 9:05:28 AM Senators G een,
French, Stevens, Bunde, and McQuire were present.

SB 19- EXEC. BRANCH ETHI CS: | NTERESTS & ACTI ONS

CHAI R MCGUI RE announced SB 19 to be up for consideration. The
comm ttee was working from CSSB 19(JUD) .

9:07: 14 AM

DAVE JONES, Senior Assistant Attorney Ceneral, Civil D vision,
Opi ni ons, Appeals, and Ethics, Departnent of Law, said everyone
is after the same goal of inproving the executive branch ethics
act and other disclosure and ethics requirenents. He said
Governor Palin has introduced a bill, HB 109, which addresses
the sane issue in Section 8. He said the governor’s bill deals
strictly with a $5,000 standard and doesn’t have the percentage
requirenent for interest in a business as does the anended
version of SB19. He said the issue cane up in the Senate
Judi ci ary Standing Conm tt ee.

9:08: 37 AM
SENATOR FRENCH asked what lines he is referring to.

CHAI R MCGUI RE passed around the governor’'s bill, SB 64.

MR. JONES said he is referring to SB 19, pages 1 and 2, lines 12
to 20.

CHAIR MCGQUIRE surmsed that M. Jones wants a sinple dollar
figure rather than a percentage |imt.

9:09: 54 AM
MR, JONES said the lines in SB 19 that refer to percentages are
lines 8, 11, and 12 on page 2.

CHAIR MCGUI RE said nmenbers of the judiciary comrttee expressed
concern about having only a dollar anmount, and she asked why the
admnistration prefers not to use a percentage standard.

MR. JONES said a dollar anmount is enough to consider whether a
public officer’s interest is significant. Using a percentage
standard, “we could have one percent of a $1,000 venture, which
would be a $10 interest, and |I'’m not sure that’'s going to help
us in getting toward the ultimate goal.” One of the consequences
of the anendnent is that on lines 5 and 6 of page 2, a
controlling interest in a business is disqualifying if the

SENATE STA COW TTEE -4- February 1, 2007



controlling interest has a fair market value of $5,6000 or nore,
he said. But on lines 8, 9, 11, and 12, a one percent interest
in a business, whether the value is $1 or $1 mllion, would be
disqualified. He said a person could be disqualified under those
lines, but under lines 5 and 6, a person would be disqualified
by only a controlling interest of $5,000 or nore.

9:12:42 AM
SENATOR FRENCH said the point is well taken and asked for the
hi storical reason for the percentage standard in the bill.

MR. JONES said he can only speculate. Some folks nay believe
that a one percent interest is easier to neasure because there
may be tinmes when it is difficult to assess the dollar value of
an interest. But, M. Jones said, it nay be even nore difficult
to determ ne the percentage value, especially for various val ues
and types of stock and stock options.

9:14: 29 AM

CHAIR MCGQUIRE recalled Representative Gara’'s point that in a
high value stock, |ike Exxon Mbile, a one percent interest
would be worth well nore than $5,000. She noted that an

ei ther/or provision works because sonetines the percentage val ue
gives nore information than the dollar figure.

SENATOR STEVENS asked if the value is the current value or the
val ue at the tine of purchase.

MR. JONES said current value is used because that is relevant,
and that is how the public would perceive it.

9:15: 50 AM
SENATOR STEVENS said it would be easier to figure the dollar
val ue.

SENATOR BUNDE said he is supportive of the public being inforned
and aware of potential conflicts. He suggested that the vagaries
of the stock narket can nake a person could go in and out of
conpliance as the value of the stock changes.

9:16: 42 AM
MR, JONES said that is certainly possible, and it is also true
for a percentage of ownership when shares are sold or issued.

SENATOR BUNDE asked about dealing in futures, which could vary

nore than $5000 over a period of 24 hours. He said he is not
dealing in those and doubts that it would apply to him but he

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 5- February 1, 2007



expressed concern for people who fall into inadvertent ethics
vi ol ati ons.

SENATOR FRENCH said owning one percent of an insignificant
conpany may not be realist. How many snmall conpanies issue
stock, “and how many executive branch enployees actually own
shares in a conpany that is basically valueless and then take
action respecting that Dbusiness?” Conversely, there is a
i kelihood of owning one percent of a local real estate LLC or a
| ocal tourism or restaurant business. He said all would agree
that a person should not take official action affecting that
investment while in state office. M. Jones’ point is good, but
havi ng both [percentage and dollar standard] will “capture it.”

9:19:16 AM
MR. JONES said the provision is in SB 64 on page 6, lines 24 to
26. He conti nued:

What we propose, there, is a presunption that stock or
other ownership interest is insignificant if it’'s |less
than $5,000 in value. The advantage of a presunption
is that it deals with both those situations where a
business interest really is significant and those
situations where, even though the value of that
interest may currently be Iless than $5,000, the
official action that the officer is taking has the
potential to really increase the value of that
interest. For exanple, if | have a $4,000 interest and
| can take action that will increase the value of that
interest to $40,000, this presunption allows us, under
the ethics act, to address that situation by saying:
OK, even though it’s under $5,000 now, because this
would stand to benefit you so dramatically, you may
not, consistent with the ethics act, take official
action on that matter.

CHAIR MCGQUI RE asked how that would play out. If there is no
di scl osure, how would it be found out?

9:21:19 AM
MR JONES said it would be the sane process as is currently
foll owed, including self-reporting and reporting by others.

9:21:40 AM

CHAIR MCGUI RE closed testinony and offered Amendnent 1, | abeled
25-LS0160\ K. 2, Wayne, as foll ows:

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 6- February 1, 2007



Page 1, line 2, followng "interest;":
Insert "prohibiting certain persons from engagi ng
in activity as |obbyists;"

Page 2, follow ng line 20:
Insert a new bill section to read:
"* Sec. 2. AS 39.52.180(d) is anmended to read:

(d) A forner governor, |ieutenant governor,
[ OR] head or deputy head of a principal
departnment in the executive branch, chair of a
state board or conmm ssion which has the authority
to adopt reqgulations, or enployee of the Ofice
of the Governor in a policy-nmaking position my
not engage in activity as a |obbyist under
AS 24.45 for a period of one year after |eaving
service as the governor, |ieutenant governor,
[OR] departnment head or deputy head, chair of a
state board or comm ssion which has the authority
to adopt regulations, or enployee of the Ofice
of the Governor in a policy-making position, as
appropriate. This subsection does not prohibit
service as a volunteer |obbyist described in
AS 24.45.161(a)(1) or a representational | obbyist
as defined under regulations of the Al aska Public
O fices Comm ssion.”

Renunber the following bill section accordingly.

Page 2, following |line 26:
Insert a new bill section to read:
"* Sec. 4. The wuncodified law of the State of
Al aska i s anended by adding a new section to read:
APPLI CABI LI TY. Section 2 of this Act applies to a
person who |eaves state service on or after the
effective date of sec. 2 of this Act."

SENATOR FRENCH obj ect ed.

CHAIR MCGQUI RE said Anmendnent 1 would prohibit “certain persons
from engaging in activities as |obbyists.” It expands that |aw
to apply to a deputy head, “and that’s conme from Governor Palin
herself.” A deputy head can be fairly high up in negotiations on
certain issues, so it is not a bad provision, she stated. She
said she is expanding it to include chairs of state boards or
commi ssions that have the authority to adopt regulations or to
an enployee of +the office of governor in a policy-nmaking
position. She noted an incident six years ago surrounding the

SENATE STA COW TTEE -7- February 1, 2007



Regul atory Comm ssion of Alaska (RCA) when the chair went
i mredi ately into the private sector as a highly paid CEO of one
of the phone conpanies. “It rubbed a |ot of people wong, again,
it’s the appearance of it. I'm not here to say it was real or
not, but it was the appearance of it that bothered people.” A
chair of a regulatory authority may even have nore power than a
| i eut enant governor or a deputy head, she stated.

9:24:12 AM
SENATOR STEVENS asked who woul d be cover ed.

CHAI R MCGUI RE said she could get a list, but it is narrowed down
so not all boards and conmi ssions are included. Hairdressers and
barbers would not be included, but only those that have the
authority to adopt regulations, including the RCA She wasn’t
sure about the railroad.

9:24: 55 AM

DAN WAYNE, Attorney, Legal Services D vision, Legislative
Affairs Agency, said he has been | ooking at who has the power to
adopt regulations. He said nany boards and conm ssions do,
including those of limted entry, real estate, fisheries, gane,
psychol ogi sts and psychol ogical associates, and exam ners. He
| earned that sone directors have the power to adopt regul ations,
like the director of the insurance division. He said he is
trying to figure out a way to exclude commi ssions and boards
that mainly performlicensing functions.

9:26:17 AM
SENATOR FRENCH asked i f t he anmendnment woul d fix t he
af orenenti oned scenario with the RCA

SENATOR CGREEN said the person went to work for soneone she had
previ ously regul at ed.

SENATOR FRENCH noted that Amendnent 1 only prohibits | obbying.

9:27:24 AM

CHAIR MCGUIRE said the |anguage covers |obbying, which can
include |obbying the board that regulates the industry. A
t el ephone conpany woul d | obby the RCA, she expl ai ned.

SENATOR STEVENS said it goes back to the issue of definition.
Sonmeone who serves the on the Board of Fish might not be all owed
to work for a fishing conpany, he said. He cautioned the
commttee about denying legitimate opportunities to nake a
['iving.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 8- February 1, 2007



9:29: 25 AM

SENATOR BUNDE said this is not a lifetime prohibition; it
requires soneone to sit out for one year, and that may allow
some of those close personal relationships to cool. A year isn't
that long for a person with talent and experience.

9: 30: 02 AM

SENATOR CREEN referred to the Agriculture Conservation Board.
She was told that the legislature could not approve the
governor’s appoi nt ment s because of their fiduciary
responsibility. There is another level of boards that adopts
regul ati ons and has control over noney, she not ed.

CHAIR MCGQUI RE said there is a broader discussion as to whether
wor king for a conmpany is allowed, but the anendnent says a chair
with significant power can't engage as a |obbyist for one year.
People will still be able to go work for a fisheries conpany
after serving on the Board of Fish, but they just can't be a
| obbyist to |obby the very board they just chaired in a policy
role for one year. “You don't want to have a situation where the
appearance or reality is that sonebody is using that year as an
opportunity to curry favor to steer regul ati ng-writing
authority, decision making or negotiations in a direction of
sonmebody who they will ultimately benefit fromprivately.”

9:32: 57 AM
SENATOR STEVENS asked why the | anguage should stop at the chair,
and not the nenbers, |ike the nmenbers of the Board of Regents

They all have enornous power, he stated.

MR. WAYNE said the rest of AS39.52.180 doesn’'t show up in the
bill, but it says that a public officer who | eaves state service
may not represent or advise for conpensation regarding a matter
that was under consideration by the adm nistrative unit served
by that public officer for two years. He said that seens to
address the person who l|left the RCA to work for a utility
conpany. “Although it doesn’'t talk about |obbying,” he said. He
stated that he doesn't know why the anmendnent |anguage is
limted to the heads of the boards. In response to Senator
Green, he said he thinks the |anguage could say that boards and
comm ssions that fall under AS 08.01.010 would be excluded from
the provision, because that is a chapter that deals wth

centralized licensing. It doesn't include things like limted
entry, fisheries, and the regulatory board. But it includes
licensing boards, I|ike nursing, pharmacy, big ganme conmerci al

services, dental services, “and things of that nature.”

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 9- February 1, 2007



CHAIR MCGQUIRE said that is the chapter under centralized
I i censing.

9:36: 18 AM
SENATOR STEVENS asked if M. Jones is saying that a nenber of
t he RCA woul d have | ess opportunity for mschief than the chair.

MR. WAYNE said he is not saying that, but obviously the chair
has a different type of authority and sonme may say it 1is
greater. But other nenbers, including a person with the sw ng
vote, can have trenmendous power.

9:37:13 AM
CHAIR MCGQUIRE offered an anendnent to Amendnent 1 that wll
“exenpt those boards and conmi ssions under AS 08.01.010 1in

centralized licensing.” She said that includes boards |I|ike
veterinarian exam ners, concert pronoters, and mdw ves. She
said, “So I'll do it as a conform ng anmendnent and give you the

|atitude to put it where you think is appropriate.” Hearing no
obj ection, Anendnent 1 to Anendnent 1 carri ed.

SENATOR FRENCH offered a second anendment to Anendnment 1. *“It
|l ooks as if we're capturing the governor, |ieutenant governor,
conmi ssi oners, now deputy comm ssioners.” He said he would like
to add division directors because many of them particularly in
oil and gas, the Departnent of Environnental Conservation, and
wth tax or revenue duties “just carry enornous anounts of power
over industries that they're regulating and to let them turn
around and conme back as |obbyists imediately, | think strikes
many folks as being a little too close.” The person may be able
to get a job in private industry using know edge gained in the
public, but to cone back in the halls and |obby a nonth |ater
“Iis alittle too close,” he expl ai ned.

9:39: 30 AM
CHAIR MCGQU RE saw no objection, therefore Anendnent 2 to
Amendnent 1 carri ed.

SENATOR STEVENS maintained his objection to Amendnent 1, as
anmended.

SENATOR GREEN said executive directors of boards “are far nore

powerful than the chair.” The executive director sets out the
agenda and determ nes what is on the cal endar.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -10- February 1, 2007



CHAIR MCGQU RE said it is up to the commttee, but perhaps that
shoul d be another anendnent after Anendnent 1. A roll call vote
was taken on Anendnent 1. Senators French, G een, Bunde,
Stevens, and Chair M@ire all voted in favor; therefore,
Anmendnent 1, as amended, carri ed.

9:41: 23 AM
CHAIR MCGU RE asked if the executive directors of these boards
and comm ssions should be included in the |egislation.

SENATOR FRENCH said he needs nore information about who the
individuals are and if they are state enpl oyees.

CHAI R MCGUI RE asked if there is any statutory reference to that.
MR. WAYNE said he is looking it up.

SENATOR GREEN said executive directors are generally hired by
t he boards.

9:42: 48 AM
CHAI R MCGUI RE asked if all boards get an executive director.

SENATOR GREEN said she didn’'t know but sone are handl ed through
the division and many have a single executive director. “This
may be going way deeper than we want to go, particularly wthout
testinmony,” she noted.

CHAIR MCGUI RE said the bill goes to the Senate Finance Conmittee
and the issue could be explored prior to that hearing. It would
give M. Wayne tine to consider it as well.

SENATOR FRENCH noved SB 19, as anended, from conmttee wth
i ndi vidual recomendations and acconpanying fiscal notes. There
bei ng no objection, CSSB 19(STA) noved out of commttee.

The comm ttee took and at-ease from9:44 to 9:47.

SB 20- LEG SLATI VE DI SCLOSURES

9:47: 09 AM
CHAI R MCAUI RE announced the consi derati on of SB 20.

JOHN FARLEIGH, Anchorage, said he 1is a fourth-generation

Al askan, and he is speaking for hinself. He said his testinony
addresses the ethics of any policy nmaker, |legislative or

SENATE STA COW TTEE -11- February 1, 2007



executive, and not just a specific bill. He said testifiers
mention their length of residency in Alaska, inplying that an
opinion is nore valuable for those who have been in Al aska
| onger, but “l personally don't subscribe to that theory.” But
he noted a recent television news interview of a young couple
who had just noved to Alaska and had used the term *“back hone,”
referring to where they cane from “For ne, as a fourth-
generation Al askan, this is back hone; | have no other hone.”

MR. FARLEIGH said he is deeply enbarrassed that the federal
governnent has to clean up Alaska's nmess. He noted that there
have been obvious signs for years “about things that didn't seem
right, and yet nothing was done” wuntil the FBlI canme to
investigate the legislature. “It’s enbarrassing to nme as an
Al askan that we’'re viewed as a corrupt state.” He said it is
time to change that. Any policy maker should be held to a high
standard, and even the appearance of inpropriety needs to be

dealt with. “W need to be able to trust our governnent,” he
stated. He said that suggestions reported in the news sound
good, i ncluding not allowing legislative spouses to Dbe

| obbyists, but it should be expanded to any imrediate famly
menber because they are all possible conduits for bribes and
shoul d be under scrutiny. H's son noticed the warning on a novie
he watched last night that a person could spend five years in
jail for copying a novie. He said his son then asked why a
politician who breaks the law could be fined only $5,6000. “If
our policy makers sell us out for their own benefit, there ought
to be significant penalties,” including six-figure fines and
jail time for egregious violations, he opined.

9:51: 26 AM

MR. FARLEIGH said the fines are not adequate to dissuade
pol i cymakers from operating for their own benefit instead of the
benefit of all Al askans.

CHAI R MCCGUI RE sai d she appreciated the testinony.

STUART THOWPSON, Ketchikan and Wasilla, said he represents only
himsel f, and he appreciates the help from Senator French's
office. He noted that he had a 4.5-mnute statenent regarding
all ethics legislation, including SB 20. He told the conmttee
that | awrakers are not inherently evil, but they are humans who
need support to resist tenptations that appeal to their
inperfections. He said the natural inperfections of people are
why governnment is even necessary. “How to govern the governors
is what defines the form of governnent; in other words, a form
of government is any design for mnimzing corruption and poor

SENATE STA COW TTEE -12- February 1, 2007



adm nistration by those w elding governnment powers,” he stated.
He said that nmakes the conceptual understandings of the
constitutions, and their philosophical foundations, the nost
powerful resource for dealing with political corruption, “short
of the suprene being.” He suggested that |awrakers use the
followng w sdom of Socrates: inadequate conprehension of a
subject’s key words prevents the affected person from
understanding the subject well enough to constructively apply
it. He said the dictionary provides five easy definitions for
“corrupt.”

[ The testinmony was interrupted by a busy signal.]

9:54:10 AM
CHAIR MCGQUIRE said a copy of M. Thonpson’s testinmony is in the
conm ttee packet, “so it wll be included into the public record
indelibly.”
9:54: 29 AM

CHAIR MCGQUIRE closed public testinmony on SB 20. She offered
Amendnent 1, | abel ed 25-LS0161\M 4, Wayne, as foll ows:

Page 1, lines 1 - 2:
Delete "of information about certain incone
recei ved as conpensation for personal services"

Page 1, following |line 5:
Insert a new bill section to read:
"* Section 1. AS 24.60 is anended by adding a new
section to article 2 to read:
Sec. 24.60. 115. Di scl osure required of a

| egislator, |egislative enployee or public nenber of
the commttee after final day of service. A person
serving as a legislator, legislative enployee, or
public menber of the commttee shall, not later than

90 days after the person's final day of service, file
a disclosure of every matter that was subject to
di scl osure under this chapter while the person was
serving."

Page 1, line 6:
Del ete "Section 1"
| nsert "Sec. 2"

Renunber the followi ng bill sections accordingly.

Page 2, follow ng line 21:

SENATE STA COW TTEE -13- February 1, 2007



Insert a new bill section to read:

"* Sec. 3. The wuncodified law of the State of
Al aska i s anended by adding a new section to read:

APPLI CABI LI TY. (a) Section 1 of this Act applies
to a person serving as a legislator who | eaves service
on or after the effective date of this Act, and to a
person who is not a legislator but served as a
| egi sl ator between April 9, 2006, and the effective
date of this Act.

(b) A person who is not a legislator on the
effective date of this Act but who served as a
| egi sl ator between April 9, 2006, and the effective
date of this Act shall make the disclosure required by
AS 24.60. 115, added by sec. 1 of this Act, within 90
days after the effective date of this Act."

Renunber the followi ng bill section accordingly.

CHAIR MCGUI RE said Amendnent 1 closes a |oophole that appears to
be in statute. A |lawaker has to disclose any incone over $1000,
and the anendnent nmakes it clear that during the tinme after a
| awmaker is defeated or not running again, the reporting is
still required. She said she didn't know how it has been done in
the past, but this closes the gap and nmakes it clear that “you
can’t spend your last year in office.doing what you want.as a
| egislator and then not disclosing that incone received.” The
nmore controversial part of the anmendnent (taken from the
governor's bill) is the inclusion of legislative enployees. The
amendnent is not controversial on the whole but requiring
| egislative enployees to be subject to the sane financial
di scl osures as nmenbers mi ght be, she noted.

9:57.:14 AM

SENATOR GREEN said enployees should not be in the bill. She
asked who “the public nenber of the conmttee,” as listed in
line 9, refers to.

SENATOR FRENCH said he believes that refers to the five public
nmenmbers of the Select Conmittee on Ethics.

9:57.:50 AM
SENATOR STEVENS asked about the reporting schedule for
| egi sl at ors.

CHAIR MCGUIRE said a legislator reports on March 15 and it
covers the preceding fiscal year, so nmenbers who are on the

SENATE STA COW TTEE -14- February 1, 2007



fourth year of a four-year term “they’'re no |longer a |awraker.”
She said she thinks it’s been unclear, as reported by the ethics
advi sor, because sone nenbers report and sone don’t. It would
clarify that all nenbers, even if they have left office, are
required to report.

SENATOR FRENCH said it also closes the gap in early January
prior to the swearing in of new nenbers that has been outside
t he di scl osure requirenents.

9:59: 22 AM

SENATOR STEVENS said there is often a special session in
Novenber, so why not |eave the March 15 reporting date, rather
than 90 days after a person’s final day? He said he understands
the testinmony, but there is a real onus on a legislator to keep
all of these reporting dates in m nd.

10: 00: 31 AM

CHAIR MCGUI RE said it doesn’t cover 90 days after serving, it is
saying that, no later than 90 days after the final day of
service, the person nmust file. For exanple, a |awraker that was
defeated this year would have been holding office right up to
January 16, and “what we want to do is say that the disclosure
is going to go all the way up until that day, so ...on the fifth
or sixth of January, while you are still technically ...a nmenber
of the legislature, [you couldn’t] get some kind of lucrative
contract and then use this |oophole to fail to disclose it.”

SENATOR STEVENS said the disclosure would still be on March 15.

SENATOR FRENCH said the last day of the session is not the
operative date; it is the last day that one is officially in
office. He said he 1is trying to get all the reporting
requirenents lined up to one date.

10: 02: 22 AM

DAN WAYNE, Attorney, Legal Servi ces Division, Legi sl ative
Affairs Agency, said the select commttee on |egislative ethics
| ooked at whether |egislators should report for that tail end of
their term Up until recently there has been advice that they
need not, because statute states that a provision of the code
does not apply to former legislators, unless it specifically
states that it does. So, the code was interpreted as not
requiring themto report. The ethics commttee canme out with an
advisory opinion that the statute does require forner
| egislators and enployees to report just |ike everybody else
with respect to anything that happened while they were serving.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 15- February 1, 2007



But the m sl eading |anguage still exists. An advisory opinion is
not the same thing as a statute.

MR. WAYNE said the anendnent covers the 30 days before the end
of the regular session to the beginning of the next regular
session. So everything is reported on March 15. Sone people were
not reporting thinking they didn't have to because they were
| eaving office. This statute would say that all of those people,
in that tinme period between the two sessions, would have 90 days
fromthe time of |eaving service to file that report, he said.

SENATOR BUNDE said it is 90 days after |eaving service and not
related to the session. He noted an occasion of a |egislator
comng to Juneau and being sworn in and getting an office
al l omance and then resigning. That’s not ethical, but people do
| eave service at other tinmes other than when their replacenent
is sworn in. A person could resign mdterm he stated.

10: 07: 53 AM
SENATOR FRENCH asked who is a |l egislative enpl oyee.

MR. VWAYNE said anyone who is on the state payroll 1in the
| egi slature and who is not a | egislator.

MR. WAYNE said it includes pages, legislative staff, legislative
| egal services, and everyone in the building he works in.

10: 09: 16 AM
CHAI R MCGQUI RE said the amendnment was designed to close the gap
and the drafter took it right out of Governor Palin's bill.

SENATOR FRENCH noved Anendnent 1 to Amendnment 1 to strike
| egi sl ative enployee fromlines 8 and 10.

SENATOR BUNDE objected. He said a page will likely not becone a
| obbyi st, but a chief of staff nmay be of concern. He asked if
that person is already required to make a financial disclosure.

10: 10: 27 AM
CHAI R MCGUI RE said the comrittee doesn’t want to go backward.

SENATOR FRENCH said this is not about being a |obbyist but an
annual financial disclosure of all investnents. It nay be worthy
of a separate discussion for the type of |egislative enployee
with trenmendous influence, but this is about annual disclosures
for all legislative enployees, “and I need to be convinced.”

SENATE STA COW TTEE -16- February 1, 2007



SENATOR BUNDE said it is not sonething that needs to be pursued.

CHAIR MCQUIRE said legislative enployees are now required to
report close econom c associations as to roommates or canpaign
work. She asked if renmoving |legislative enployees from the
amendnent will take away anything that is now on the books.

10: 12: 14 AM
MR WAYNE said he needs to clear up the confusion. The
governor's bill and SB 20 wi thout the amendnment are only talking

about financial disclosures under AS 24.60.200. Legislative
enpl oyees are not currently required to make those, he added.
The | oophol e allow ng people to avoid disclosures during the gap
bet ween sessions was relevant to everyone including enployees.
He noted the econom c association and gift disclosures.

CHAIR MCGQU RE said so “this anmendnment is not changing the
statute with respect to what |egislative enployees are required
to disclose.what it's doing is saying that whatever those
di sclosures are, as outlined in Title 24, they remain, but we're
going to close the gap for themas well.”

10: 13: 48 AM
MR. WAYNE said he couldn’t have said it any better.

DAVE JONES, Senior Assistant Attorney GCeneral, Civil Division,
Opi nions, Appeals, and Ethics, Departnent of Law, said SB 64
addresses this issue in Section 3, page 3, lines 7-11. “In the
governor’s bill we did not extend the disclosure requirenents to
| egi sl ative enpl oyees, but nerely to the legislative director.”

MR. WAYNE said the way he read the governor's bill is it only
dealt wth the financial di scl osure requirenents of AS
24.60. 200, and he assunes that was why |legislative enployees
were not added, because they are not listed under the disclosure
requirenment. But the governor is also addressing the |oophole
and | eaving |egislative enployees out. Wat he drafted would do
the sanme thing, but it would also close the |oophole wth
respect to reporting requirenents under other sections by
| egislative enployees. “Since the legislative director is a
| egi sl ative enpl oyee..”

10: 15: 34 AM
SENATOR FRENCH wi t hdrew hi s anendnent to Anendnent 1.

SENATOR STEVENS w thdrew his objection. Hearing no further
obj ections, Amendnent 1 carried.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -17- February 1, 2007



CHAI R MCGQUI RE asked about the spousal | obbying provision, “and I
think it probably is a good one; | just don't know how to draft
it on the fly.” She asked for help from M. Wyne.

10: 16: 30 AM
MR. WAYNE said he couldn’t come up with it “on the fly.”

CHAIR MCGUI RE noved Anendnent 2, |abeled 25-LS0161\M 3, Wayne
as follows:

Page 1, line 4, followng "Act":
Insert "relating to the applicability of the
Legi slative Ethics Act;"

Page 1, following line 5:

Insert a new bill section to read:
"* Section 1. AS 24.60.020(a) is anended to read:
(a) Except as otherwise provided in this

subsection, this chapter applies to a nenber of the
| egislature, to a legislative enployee, and to public
menbers of the commttee. This chapter does not apply
to

(1) a former nenber of the |egislature or
to a person fornmerly enployed by the legislative
branch of government unless a [THE] provision of this
chapter specifically states that it applies;

(2) a person elected to the |egislature who
at the time of election is not a nenber of the
| egi sl ature.”

Page 1, line 6:
Del ete "Section 1"
| nsert "Sec. 2"

Renunber the follow ng bill sections accordingly.

MR. WAYNE noted the wording problemin the applicability section
of the Legislative Ethics Act that caused sone to think that
former legislators didn't have to report for the last half of
the year. Anmendnent 2 just changes “the provision” to “a
provision of this chapter,” he stated. “So if you read this
together with the amendment that just passed about disclosures
required of fornmer legislators, and so forth.the anendnent that
just passed would be the provision of the chapter that
specifically states that the whole chapter is applicable to
everybody, regardl ess of whether they re serving or not.”

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 18- February 1, 2007



10: 18: 03 AM
CHAIR MCQU RE said it is a technical anendnent.

SENATOR FRENCH w thdrew his objection. Hearing no further
obj ecti ons, Anmendnent 2 carri ed.

The commttee took an at-ease from 10:18:15 to 10: 18: 43 AM

10: 18: 47 AM
CHAIR MCGQUIRE said there is no tinme to consider spousal
| obbying, and it can be worked on before the bill goes to the

Senat e Fi nance Commi tt ee.

SENATOR FRENCH npbved SB 20, as anended, wth attached fiscal
notes fromcomittee with individual recommendati ons.

SENATOR BUNDE objected in order to conment. He said the
| egislature listened to an ethics expert and one of his points
was to try to “do this as a single bill and not a pieceneal. |
woul d just note that we appear to be ignoring his advice.” He
renoved his objection.

10: 19: 38 AM
SENATOR GREEN said the man also said an omibus bill failed
under its own weight. “So there are a |lot of ways to get to the

solution on this.”

SENATOR FRENCH said he can’'t resist echoing that. “lI think
today’s proceeding really is a perfect exanple of why you need
several small bills nmoving through the system because as you
add provisions, you weigh them down and it just nmkes it nore
difficult to actually get the bill to the finish line.”

10: 20: 15 AM

CHAIR MCGU RE announced that, hearing no further objections,
CSSB  20( STA) passes  out of commttee wth individual
recommendati ons and attached fiscal notes.

SB  45- PEACE COFFI CER CONVI CTED OF MJURDER

CHAIR MCGUI RE announced SB 45 to be up for consideration. She
said previous discussions centered on the color of authority.
She noted Amendnent 1 with Senator dson’s nanme attached. She
added her own and Senator French’s name to it. Anmendnment 1,
| abel ed 25-LS0183\ A. 1, Luckhaupt, is as follows:

SENATE STA COW TTEE -19- February 1, 2007



Page 2, line 9:

Del ete "was on duty at the tine of"

Insert "used the officer's authority as a peace
officer to facilitate"

CHAIR MCGUI RE said Anendnent 1 gets at what she thinks was
agreed by the commttee unaninously, which was to clarify that
the bill is not just for a peace officer commtting nurder, but
for one who uses the color of authority to do so. Hearing no
obj ection, Anendnent 1 carri ed.

SENATOR BUNDE npbved Anmendnent 2, as foll ows:

Page 2

Line 9 delete (5)
and add (5) “the court finds clear and convincing
evidence that the defendant as a peace officer
abused his or her duty and authority at the tine
of the nurder.”

CHAI R MCGUI RE obj ect ed.

The comm ttee took an at-ease from 10:22:05 AMto 10:23: 12 AM

SENATOR BUNDE expl ained his amendnent. He said “this is a very
egregi ous case, and we certainly don't want to see anything like
this happen again.” However, he wants the bill to “do no harnf
and not have “unintended consequences when a police officer has
to face that |ife-changing decision as to whether to use deadly
force.” Comm ssioner Monegan described what goes through a
person's mnd, he said. The anendnent “would not reduce the
attenpt to make sure that police officers don't abuse” their
color of authority. “But it also may reduce that additional
mllisecond pause that a police officer mght have to review in
his mnd before he does nake the decision to use deadly force
and inhibit himfromdoing his job as he ought to do it.”

10: 25: 23 AM

CHAIR MCGU RE suggested that Senator Bunde’'s anmendnent would
nullify the previous anendnent, because it is another way of
saying it. “So your |anguage would say, instead, the court finds
clear and convincing evidence that the defendant, as a peace
of ficer, abused his or her authority at the tine of the nurder.
So you're putting in a standard: clear and convincing.” She
asked what the current standard is and if it is beyond a
reasonabl e doubt .

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 20- February 1, 2007



SENATOR FRENCH said that for a sentencing provision he believes
that one has to prove every el enment beyond a reasonabl e doubt.

CHAI R MCQUI RE surm sed therefore that clear and convincing is a
| ower standard. “It’s unusual.”

The conmmittee took and at-ease from 10:26:35 AMto 10:27: 33 AM

CHAIR MCGQUI RE sai d everyone is trying to get at the sane goal.

ANNE CARPENETI, Assistant Attorney GCeneral, Legal Services
Section, Crimnal D vision, Departnment of Law, said Senator
Bunde’'s amendnent is included in Amendnent 1, which has been
adopted. She said she would prefer to just wuse the word
“authority” and not “duty and authority.” She added that it is
inmportant to include the term “facilitate” because Matt Owen
[the peace office who commtted nurder] used his authority to
get the victimin the car. At a certain point he wasn’t on duty,
she noted. Current statute states that factual findings in Title
12 have to be proved by a preponderance of evidence, unless
certain things occur. “You could put it.under paragraph 3, and
you should probably also.add it in the sentencing procedure
statutes, which say: preponderance of the evidence unless.for
exanpl e, some aggravating factor we have to prove by clear and
convincing evidence. And it is true, that at this point, since
we are dealing with maxi nuns, Bl akely doesn’t apply.”

10: 29: 39 AM
CHAI R MCGUI RE sai d that preponderance of the evidence is a |ower
standard than “clear and convincing,” so if “clear and

convincing” were added, it would nean that the prosecution nust
nmeet a higher threshold to show that a peace officer abused
authority. “Wiy would we want to do that?” she asked.

M5. CARPENETI said, “For the reasons expressed by Senator
Bunde.” She said the state would need to prove it by a higher
standard. Preponderance is 51 percent, and clear and convincing
is alittle higher.

SENATOR BUNDE said, “W do currently use it in the torture, and,

again, as soneone has to nmeke that |ife-changing decision of
whether to use deadly force or not.we don't add additional
burdens to the police officer while still punishing those.” He

then asked if M. Carpeneti was famliar with other officers
comm tting nmurder while on duty.

10: 30: 58 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE -21- February 1, 2007



M5. CARPENETI said this is first such case in 50 years of
stat ehood. She noted that these sentencing factors apply only
after soneone is found guilty of nurder in the first degree.

CHAIR MCGQUIRE said in the case of Sonya lvanoff there was a
separate trial on the torture, and the statute already read “hby
clear and convincing evidence,” so that was net. She then
stated that she was confusing two cases. “In this case, you got
99 years. The law wasn’t on the books, so there was no standard
of proof. If there had been a | aw on the books, and it had been
difficult to get the mandatory 99, and the |law had read °‘clear
and convincing evidence’, do you believe you would have been
able to neet that standard?”

M5. CARPENETI said she could ask the prosecutor. She said that
case had no mandatory maxi mum “and we were able to prove by no
particul ar standard of proof that the court should inpose the
maxi mum for the reasons that are really inherent in the
pur poses of the bill.”

10: 33: 00 AM

WALT MONEGAN, Commi ssioner, said he supports Amendnent 2 while
striking out the word “duty.” That would resolve his concern of
creating another hesitation [in an officer’s decision to use
deadly force]. He wanted a clear distinction from being a police
of ficer and being a predator. He noted that the officer deserved
the sentence he got, “I just don't want to cause that
hesitation.”

CHAIR MCGU RE said there is a way to get at the sane idea.
Wrking with the adopted anendnent, insert, on page 2, line 9,
(before the new |anguage) "the court finds by clear and
convincing evidence that the defendant used the officer’s
authority as a peace officer to facilitate”. So Senator Bunde's
anendnent would be to insert: the court finds by clear and
convi nci ng evidence that the defendant.

10: 35: 14 AM
SENATOR BUNDE asked if he should w thdraw Arendnent 2 and offer
Amendment 2a.

CHAI R MCGQUI RE said yes. Anmendnent 2a has been offered, she said,
as follows:

Page 2, line 9:

Insert: “the court finds by clear and convincing
evi dence that the defendant”

SENATE STA COW TTEE -22- February 1, 2007



SENATOR FRENCH said it woul d now read:

“the court finds by clear and convincing evidence that
the defendant is a peace officer who wused the
officer’s authority as a peace officer to facilitate..

10: 36: 30 AM
CHAIR MCGQU RE said that is better. Hearing no objections,
Amendnent 2a carri ed.

SENATOR STEVENS noved Anendnent 3, | abel ed 25-LS0183\A. 2,
Luckhaupt, as foll ows:

Page 1, following line 2:
Insert a new bill section to read:
"* Section 1. The uncodified law of the State of
Al aska i s anended by adding a new section to read:
SHORT TITLE. This Act may be known as the Sonya
| vanof f Act."

Page 1, line 3:
Del ete "Section 1"
| nsert "Sec. 2"

Renunber the following bill section accordingly.

Page 2, line 13:
Del ete "Section 1"
| nsert "Section 2"

Heari ng no objection, Amendnent 3 carri ed.
SENATOR GREEN asked about using the term“law’ instead of “act”.

SENATOR FRENCH said these specifically-naned titles have
recently been taken out of the law. He said he always votes to
take themout of the law, and he will object for consistency.

10: 38: 10 AM
CHAIR MCGUIRE said it has already carried, so Senator French
will need to offer another anendnment.

SENATOR FRENCH said he will not make an issue of it.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -23- February 1, 2007



CHAIR MCGQU RE said there was a healthy debate in the Senate
Judiciary Standing Commttee, and she suspects the issue wll
come up again.

SENATOR GREEN noved SB 45, as anended, from commttee wth
i ndi vi dual recommendati ons and acconpanyi ng fiscal notes.

SENATOR BUNDE reiterated that it was an egregious case and not
common for this to happen, and he hopes it won't happen again.
He noted that the bill is a thoughtful reaction, and not a knee-
jerk reaction.

CHAI R MCGUI RE heard no further objections, so CSSB 45(STA) noved
out of commttee.

The Senate State Affairs Standing Conmittee neeting was
adj ourned at 10: 39: 55 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 24- February 1, 2007



